
 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG  

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Venue: The Atrium, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  

Date:   Thursday, 16th September, 2021 
Time:   2.00 pm 
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby        Tel: 07385 362806 

 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:   

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2021  1 - 6 

   

4. External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit's Conformance to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards  

  7 - 34 

5. Internal Audit Update  35 - 40 

6. Final Accounts - verbal update   

7. Grant Thornton update  41 - 56 

8. Date and Time of Next Meeting:   

 The next meeting of the Audit Committee will be held on 
Thursday 11 November 2021 at 2:00pm in The Atrium, Copeland 
Centre, Whitehaven. 
 

 

 
 

Membership: Mr Michael Bonner (Chair), Joan Hully (Deputy Chair), 
Jackie Bowman, Allan Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Tom Higgins, Russell Studholme 
and Eileen Weir. 

 
Contacts:  Direct Dial: 07385 362806 
   E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
   Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 29 JULY 2021 
 

Present: Mr Michael Bonner, in the Chair; Councillors Joan Hully, Jeffrey Hailes, 
Tom Higgins and Russell Studholme 
 
Officers: Steven Brown (Director of Financial Resources) and Rose Blaney 
(Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny)) and David Cowan (IT Manager). 
 
 

AU 21/36 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence received from Councillors Allan Forster, Jackie Bowman 
and Eileen Weir. 
 
Apologies also received from Steven Brown (Director of Financial Resources) and 
Rose Blaney (Democratic Services Officer (Scrutiny)) and Gareth Kelly (Grant 
Thornton UK LLP) 
 
 

AU 21/37 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

AU 21/38 Minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2021  
 
Consideration was given to the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 May 2021. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 20 May be agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

AU 21/39 Treasury Management Annual Review  
 
Late notice was given to say that the Treasury Management expert was unable 
to attend. The Chair proposed deferring the agenda item until the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED – that it was unanimously agreed to defer the agenda item to the 
next Audit Committee meeting in September 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Due to Item 4 being deferred and the IT Manager not being expected until later 
in the meeting, having been given a time to attend, the Chair proposed a change 
to the running order of the agenda. The Committee agreed with this proposal. 
 

AU 21/40 Implementation of Overdue Audit Recommendations Q1 2021-22  
 
The Director of Financial Resources introduced this report to Committee on 
behalf of the Performance and Risk Management Officer who had submitted her 
apologies. Within the overview given, the Director noted that a number of the 
overdue recommendations can now be moved forward following the agreement 
of the Financial Regulations at Full Council on 28th July 2021. 
 
Councillor Hailes asked if the risk assessments had been made available for staff. 
The Democratic Services Officer commented that they were available on the 
Health and Safety SharePoint page. 
 
Councillor Studholme asked if there was a business enterprise system in place 
within the council. The Director answered that Copeland currently use a system 
called Total Finance, which is common in Local Government, but are looking to 
move to a new system called Microsoft Dynamics. The actions shown within the 
report will be captured by the system. It was noted that the current system, 
implemented in 2005-06 was coming towards the end of life and was not 
allowing changes for efficiency. The Chair noted that Local Government has a 
different finance system, so most business enterprise systems are not suitable 
for councils. 
 
Questions were asked regarding Health and Safety by Councillors Hully and 
Studholme, as the Director was unable to answer the questions, he suggested 
inviting the Health & Safety Officer to the next Audit Committee meeting to 
provide a report and update the committee on Health & Safety Audit queries. 
 
RESOLVED – that. 
 

a) the progress being made to implement outstanding recommendations be 
noted 

the Health and Safety Officer be invited to the next Committee meeting to 
provide an update on the Health & Safety Audit Recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



AU 21/41 Internal Audit Annual Report  
 
The Director of Financial Resources gave an overview of the report. He noted 
that reasonable assurance was given to over half of the reviews and partial 
assurance was given to others leading them to be follow on to be reviewed 
again. This related to a questions given by Councillor Higgins during the previous 
agenda item.  
 
Councillor Hailes asked about the priority and scoring of recommendations. The 
Director highlighted that there was no review during Covid (2020/21) and 
therefore the Internal Audit were not in a position to review/reflect on the 
funding and give the usual assurances. He then noted that the scoping will take 
time but that other authorities have gone through similar reviews which will 
help with lessons learned. 
 
Councillors Higgins asked about sundry debtors being put on hold for grants. The 
Director answered that the internal audit had been put on hold during Covid but 
that the recovery actions for sundry debtors still continued although not as 
normal. Soft recoveries were implemented to help people during Covid while 
still keeping the recovery process active. 
 
Councillor Studholme asked if there were enough auditors to do the work 
required. The Director highlighted that Copeland Borough Council (CBC) have 
two trained auditors on staff and that there is also a review being conducted by 
CIPFA which will help compare CBC to the rest of the sector. It was noted that 
Allerdale Borough Council have a similar set up, although they have not 
experienced a cyber-attack. But, when and where required they are willing to 
share resources and answer questions. 
 
Councillor Hailes took the opportunity to thank Janet Sinnott and her team for 
all their hard work regarding the Business Support Grants. The Director noted 
this and would pass on the message to the team. The Director also commented 
that thanks should also be given to Councillors for all their help, as Councillor 
Higgins noted that they worked with residents to encourage those who thought 
they were ineligible to complete the required forms. 
 
 
RESOLVED – that, 
 

a) the outcomes of the work of Internal Audit for 2020/21 and the Chief 
Audit Executive’s opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s 
arrangements for risk management, governance and internal controlbe 
noted; 

Page 3



b) progress against the annual plan as set out in Appendix A of the agenda 
report be noted; 

c) progress against the key performance indicators as set out in 
Appendix B of the agenda report be noted. 

 
AU 21/42 Internal Audit Plan 2021/22  

 
The Director of Financial Resources gave an overview of the ‘provisional plan’ 
report noting that both Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) and Covid may 
have an impact. Meaning the plan will need to be kept under constant review 
with updates on the plan being given at future Audit Committee meetings. 
 
Both Councillors Hully and Higgins took this as an opportunity to declare an 
interest in this item as being the Chair of Cleator Moor Town Council and being 
involved with the Cleator Moor Towns Deal, as well as possible involvement in 
the Egremont Borderland bid respectively. 
 
Councillor Hailes asked about the reliance on other providers. The Chair noted 
that the Charter is set out nationally with a legal requirement and framework to 
follow, while the Director commented that there doesn’t tend to be crossover 
with other authorities. The aim is to avoid duplication, so any crossover with 
external audit is mitigated by working together and lining up programmes. 
 
Councillor Hully asked if CBC still work in conjunction with the Department for 
Work and Pensions (DWP) and if the deadlines detailed in the plan aren’t met, is 
there a Plan B. The Director noted that there is an agreement with DWP in 
regards to distribution and funding but that there is no inspectorate on their 
behalf. He then answered that, the team tend not to fill the full 20 days with a 
constant review as if they were to go over the 20 days there would be issues. If 
there are issues then the director would reflect on the day and the reasons why. 
 
Councillor Higgins asked for and received clarification that there if there are any 
amendments or anything was missed and needed reviewed then it would be 
included within a progress report to the Audit Committee. 
  
RESOLVED – that, 
 

a) the Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 be agreed; and 
b) the Internal Audit Charter at Appendix A be agreed 

 
 
 
 

Page 4



AU 21/43 ICT Strategy Presentation  
 

The Director of Financial Resources gave a brief introduction as to the reason 
this was being brought to Audit, highlighting the cyber-attack and the ensuing 
issues and therefore audit recommendations. 

The ICT Manager gave the Committee their ICT Strategy Presentation, noting 
that it had initially been shown to the Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) in 
November 2019 but had also included updates to show the progress made since 
then. 

The Chair thanked the Managers for their presentation which was echoed by the 
Committee. 

Councillor Hailes asked why the open IT staff positions remained open and what 
the level of cyber security would be in relation to LGR. The IT Manager noted 
that the lack of staff is an ongoing frustration throughout West Cumbria and not 
just CBC. There is a general shortage of cyber security staff and the geography of 
West Cumbria doesn’t seem to appeal. As for LGR, the Manager noted that 
compared to neighbouring authorities, CBC has a higher cyber security threshold 
due to the cyber-attack suffered in 2017 which has since led to CBC working to 
help with improving the national strategy. The Manager also noted that, unless 
you have suffered a cyber-attack, you can’t really comprehend the effect that it 
can have on systems. 

Councillor Higgins asked if there had been a discovery as to who orchestrated 
the 2017 cyber-attack. The Manager noted that each attack is different and that 
there are lots of different groups from all over the world including organised 
crime. 

Councillor Hully asked about the wage comparison between CBC and Sellafield 
with the Manager noting that job for job Sellafield does appear to pay better (no 
exact figures available) but that CBC do pay more than some of the neighbouring 
authorities. 

Councillor Hailes asked if the technology available within CBC would be suitable 
for more than one authority through LGR. The Manager answered that, 
technically yes, as the hardware can be replaced as required and that there is 
capacity and space to add more. But, as LGR has a lot of unknown around it, 
there is no definite answer. 

Councillor Hully asked for clarification around the ‘Cloud’ storage. The Manager 
explained that it is essentially saving the documents to someone else’s 
computer somewhere else in the UK but that three key questions should always 
be asked; do you trust them, where is the data going and is it safe. Councillor 

Page 5



Hully also thanked those in the IT department and the Democratic Services 
Team for all their help relating to IT issues over the past year. 

The Chair asked whether it was worth revisiting the recommendations regarding 
ICT problems as there may be some that no longer exist. The IT Manager 
commented that not all actions/recommendations recorded were actionable, 
noting that the team are not always able to write a policy because they were 
busy physically solving the problem. The Manager then recommended closing 
the disaster recovery plan audit recommendation as it needs a realistic date and 
an update rather than new plan is needed. The Director noted the 
recommendation and agreed to investigate it further before bringing it to the 
Committee. 

 
AU 21/44 Grant Thornton Update (Verbal)  

 
The Chair read out a letter received by Grant Thornton when they submitted 
their apologies. 
 
A further update will be requested with a written update to be given at the next 
Committee meeting. 
 

AU 21/45 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The next meeting of Audit Committee will be held on Thursday 16 September at 
2:00pm in The Atrium, Copeland Centre, Whitehaven.  
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 4.20 pm  
 

 
Chair 

Page 6



  
Audit Committee 16th September 2021 

External quality assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance to the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
LEAD OFFICER: 

Mike Starkie 
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 
 
WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS? 
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs to 
enable the continued delivery of services to Copeland residents.  
 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO AUDIT COMMITTEE? 
This report provides the Audit Committee with the findings of CIPFA’s quality 
assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance to the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to:  

1. Note the findings of CIPFA’s quality assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

2. Approve the Action Plan set out in Section 9 of the report. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) promote the professionalism, 
quality, consistency and effectiveness of internal audit across the public sector. A 
professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the key 
elements of good governance, as recognised throughout the UK public sector. 

1.2. The objectives of the PSIAS are to:  

 define the nature of internal auditing within the UK public sector; 

 set basic principles for carrying out internal audit in the UK public sector; 

 establish a framework for providing internal audit services, which add value 
to the organisation, leading to improved organisational processes and 
operations, and 

 establish the basis for the evaluation of internal audit performance and to 
drive improvement planning. 

1.3. A requirement of PSIAS (1312 External Assessments) is for external assessments 
to be conducted at least once every five years by a qualified, independent 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



  
assessor or assessment team from outside the organisation. The external 
assessor must conclude as to conformance with the Code of Ethics and the PSIAS; 
the external assessment may also include operational or strategic comments. 

1.4. The Internal Audit service came back in-house from April 2017 (at the end of the 
shared service agreement) and an external assessment had not been carried out 
since that date. Grant Thornton recommendations reported under section 24 
schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2017 (February 2021) 
included “Carry out independent Internal Audit and Audit Committee 
effectiveness reviews to assess their impact on improving the Council’s internal 
control environment”.  

1.5. A CIPFA review of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee is currently ongoing 
and will be reported at a later date. 

1.6. This report gives the findings of CIPFA’s quality assessment of Internal Audit’s 
conformance to the PSIAS.  

2. CONCLUSIONS 

2.1. The Committee is asked to note the findings of the CIPFA’s quality assessment of 
Internal Audit’s conformance to the PSIAS and approve the Action Plan set out in 
Section 9 of the report. 

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  

3.1. Legal comments are: contained in the report 

3.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: contained in the report 

3.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report. 

3.4. EIA Comments: N/A 

3.5. Policy Framework: N/A 

3.6. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A 

List of Appendices  

Appendix A – CIPFA’s quality assessment of Internal Audit’s conformance to the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

Page 8



 

 
 
 

 
External Quality Assessment of Conformance to 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
 
 
 

 
 

Copeland Borough Council 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Draft Report 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Lead Associate: Ray Gard, CPFA, FCCA, CFIIA, DMS 
 

Internal QA: Policy and Technical, CIPFA.  
 

 
 

27th August 2021 
 

Page 9



 

Page 1 of 24 Pages 

Contents 

 

 

Section  Page 

1. Introduction 2 

2. Background 2 

3. Validation process 3 

4. Opinion 4 

5. Areas of general conformance with the standards 5 

6. Areas of partial conformance with the standards 7 

7. Areas of non-conformance with the standards 10 

8. Survey results 11 

9. Action plan 12 

10. Definitions  21 

 Statement of limitations 22 

Appendix A Summary of survey results 23 

Page 10



 

Page 2 of 24 Pages 

1. Introduction 

1.1 Internal audit within the public sector in the United Kingdom is governed by the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS), which have been in place since 1st 

April 2013 (revised 2016 and 2017). In local government, the way internal audit 

services operate is more flexible than in other parts of the public sector where 

there is a large degree of central control.  To ensure local authority internal audit 

services apply the PSIAS in a uniform way, the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has produced the local government application 

note (LGAN) which provides additional detail for each of the individual standards. 

The LGAN is mandatory for local authorities.   

1.2 All public sector internal audit services are required to measure how well they are 

conforming to the standards.  This can be achieved through undertaking periodic 

self-assessments, external quality assessments, or a combination of both methods.  

However, the standards state that an external reviewer must undertake a full 

assessment or validate the internal audit service’s own self-assessment at least 

once in a five-year period.   

1.3 Copeland Borough Council (CBC) has commissioned CIPFA to undertake this 

external quality assessment and this report sets out their findings. 

2. Background 

2.1 Copeland Borough Council has a small Internal Audit Team with an establishment 

comprising an Audit Manager and 1.6 full time equivalent Senior Auditors, 

however, the Audit Manager post has been vacant since the summer of 2019. 

Given the problems experienced by other councils in the region in recruiting 

qualified staff, the Council decided not to try  to fill the post but instead this role 

has been taken on by the Council’s Director of Financial Resources (the Section 151 

Officer) who is CIPFA qualified. Whilst this arrangement is permitted, it is not 

common in the local government sector and is far from ideal as the Director of 

Financial Resources has management and operational responsibility for a number 

of services that are subjected to regular internal audit. Consequently, there are 

potential impairments to the independency and objectivity of both the Chief Audit 

Executive (CAE) and Section 151 Officer roles.     

2.2 The two Senior Auditors are experienced local government internal auditors 

however neither of them holds a relevant professional qualification; both having 

only reached level three of the Association of Accounting Technicians (AAT) 

qualification.      

2.3 From an operational perspective, the Internal Audit Service reports directly to the 

Council’s Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) and the Audit Committee (AC). Whilst 

on paper these reporting lines are clear and as expected by the PSIAS, in practice 

they are more opaque as the CAE is also the Section 151 Officer and is part of the 

CLT. The CLT and the AC are the two bodies that fulfil the roles of ‘senior 

management’ and ‘the board’, as defined by the PSIAS, and although they are set 

out in the Council’s audit charter they are not directly referenced to the PSIAS. 

Regular reports on the audit plan, progress on delivering the audit plan, and the 

CAE’s annual opinion and outturn are made to the CLT and the AC.  

2.3 Internal Audit has an audit manual that contains the basic processes for the Senior 

Auditors to follow and is underpinned with standard template documents for the 

engagement working papers and testing schedules, engagement terms of 

references, action plans and audit reports.  

2.4 The Service is too small to warrant the expenditure on an audit management 

software application and although the Service has used the IDEA audit data 

interrogation and analysis software in the past, they do not have a current licence 

for the application.    

Page 11



 

Page 3 of 24 Pages 

2.5 The Service has a quality assurance process in place, but this is currently limited to 

undertaking periodic self-assessments of the Service against the PSIAS, and the  

EQA. The Council operates a staff appraisal and development process but formal 

appraisals of the two Senior Auditors had not been undertaken for some time, 

although the assessor understands that the Director of Financial Resources met 

with each of them to discuss potential training requirements and studying for 

professional qualifications whilst this EQA was in progress.  

2.6 There are  other factors that have had an impact on the Council and Internal Audit 

that the assessor is aware of and has taken note of during this EQA.  

i. The first of these is the fact that CBC was subjected to a catastrophic 

cyberattack back in 2017, the result of which was the complete loss of most 

of its data and information technology systems. It has taken several years to 

recover from this and although significant progress has been made, there are 

still some systems that are not fully recovered. 

ii. The second factor is the on-going COVID-19 pandemic which, like all local 

authorities around the UK, has had a huge impact on service delivery and, in 

the case of Internal Audit, compiling and delivering an audit plan with 

sufficient assurance reviews to enable the CAE to deliver a meaningful annual 

opinion for 2020/21. 

iii. The third factor is the local government reorganisation for Cumbria which 

went out for consultation earlier in 2021 and resulted in a number of 

alternative proposals being submitted to the Ministry of Housing, 

Communities and Local Government to consider. On the 22 July 2021 the 

Communities Minister issued his decision and Cumbria is to become two 

unitary authorities from April 2023. Copeland will join with Allerdale Borough 

Council, Carlisle City Council and part of Cumbria County Council. This 

decision will undoubtedly have an impact on the way that CBC chooses to 

deal with the issues identified during this EQA. 

iv. The fourth and final factor is the Section 24 notice that the Council’s external 

auditor, Grant Thornton, issued in February 2021. This requires CBC to 

undertake the full EQA of the internal audit service that is due in 2021, and in 

addition, to undertake an effectiveness review of the Audit Committee to 

strengthen the internal control environment at the authority. 

 

3. Validation Process 

3.1 The EQA comprises a combination of a review of the evidence provided by Internal 

Audit; a review of a sample of completed internal audits, chosen by the assessor; 

and a series of (virtual) interviews using MS Teams with key stakeholders. The 

interviews focussed on determining the strengths and weaknesses of Internal Audit 

and assessed the Service against the four broad themes of Purpose and 

Positioning; Structure and Resources; Audit Execution; and Impact. 

3,2 Internal Audit provided a range of documents that were available for examination 

prior to and during this EQA.  These documents included the: 

 self-assessment against the standards; 

 the audit charter;  

 the annual reports and opinions; 

 the audit plan; 

 audit procedures manual;  

 a range of documents and records relating to the team members; and  

Page 12



 

Page 4 of 24 Pages 

 progress and other reports to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

All of the above documents were examined during the EQA. 

3.3 The EQA was carried out from the 21st June through to the 9th July 2021, and 

involved interviews with the key personnel from CBC, the AC, and external audit.   

3.4 A questionnaire was sent to a range of other key stakeholders (Officers and 

Members) in advance of the assessment commencing and the results analysed 

during the review.  The response rate to the survey was very low, particularly from 

Officers. A summary of the survey results is shown at appendix A of the report.   

3.5 The assessor also carried out an end-to-end review of a sample of seven completed 

audits to confirm his understanding of the audit process used by Internal Audit. 

 

4. Opinion 

 

It is our opinion that Copeland Council’s Internal Audit Service 

PARTIALLY CONFORM to the requirements of the Public Sector Internal 

Audit Standards and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

 

The table below shows Copeland Borough Council’s Internal Audit Service’s level of 

conformance to the individual standards assessed during this external quality 

assessment: 

Standard / Area Assessed Level of Conformance 

Mission Statement & Definition of 

Internal Audit 

Partially Conforms 

Core principles Partially Conforms 

Code of ethics Partially Conforms 

Attribute standard 1000 Generally Conforms 

Attribute standard 1100 Generally Conforms 

Attribute standard 1200 Partially Conforms 

Attribute standard 1300 Partially Conforms 

Performance standard 2000 Partially Conforms 

Performance standard 2100 Generally Conforms 

Performance standard 2200 Generally Conforms 

Performance standard 2300 Generally Conforms 

Performance standard 2400 Partially Conforms 

Performance standard 2500  Generally Conforms 

Page 13



 

Page 5 of 24 Pages 

Standard / Area Assessed Level of Conformance 

Performance standard 2600 Generally Conforms 

 

5. Areas of general conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards 

5.1 Attribute Standard 1000 – Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

The purpose, authority and responsibility of the internal audit activity must be 

formally defined in an internal audit charter, consistent with the Mission of Internal 

Audit and the mandatory elements of the International Professional Practices 

Framework (the Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, 

the Code of Ethics, the Standards and the Definition of Internal Auditing). The 

internal audit charter must be reviewed regularly and presented to senior 

management and the audit panel for approval.   

Internal Audit has produced an audit charter that generally fulfils the requirements 

of the PSIAS. It is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee annually.  We 

are satisfied that the Service generally conforms to attribute standard 1000 and 

the LGAN although there are two observations that should be addressed.  

The first observation relates to the provision of consultancy services. The audit 

charter refers to these but does not define what consultancy services are, as 

required by the PSIAS. There is no definition or section for consultancy services in 

the audit manual. (Action 12).  

The second relates to the potential impairment to the objectivity and independence 

of the Chief Audit Executive who is also the Council’s Director of Financial 

Resources and Section 151 Officer as the Council has been unable to fill the vacant 

Audit Manager post.  Whilst this arrangement is permitted, it is not ideal, although 

the Council has arrangements in place to mitigate any potential impairment and 

maintain the independence and objectivity of both roles. There are however 

alternative models that should be explored by the Council, for example a shared 

service arrangement with one of the other Councils that will join with Copeland to 

become the new West Cumbria Unitary Authority. (Action 1).   

5.2 Attribute Standard 1100 – Independence and Objectivity 

Standard 1100 states that the internal audit activity must be independent, and 

internal auditors must be objective in performing their work. 

Having spoken to key stakeholders and reviewed a number of documents produced 

by the Internal Audit Service, we are satisfied that the Internal Audit Service 

generally conforms with attribute standard 1100 and the LGAN although there are 

three observations that should be addressed. 

The first of these relates to the dual role of the Director of Financial Resources and 

Chief Audit Executive referred to under attribute standard 1000 above. (Action 1). 

The second observation is linked to the first observation and relates to the 

disclosure of this potential impairment to independence and objectivity. Whilst this 

is set out in the audit charter, along with the brief details of the mechanism that 

the Council has put in place to reduce the impact of this potential impairment, the 

same cannot be said for the annual report. Paragraph 2.1 of the 2020/21 annual 

report states that there have been no threats to the independence of Internal Audit 

and makes no mention of the dual role of the CAE and S151 Officer. In such 

circumstance it is good practice to make reference to the potential impairment in 

the annual report to remove any element of doubt for the reader as this document 

Page 14



 

Page 6 of 24 Pages 

looks back at the year just ended, whereas the audit charter is designed to be 

forward looking. (Action 8). 

The third observation relates to the audit manual which does not include any 

procedures regarding maintaining independence and objectivity and how auditors 

should deal with any potential impairments should they arise. We therefore suggest 

that a section on independence and objectivity is added to the audit manual. 

(Action 14). 

5.3 Performance Standard 2100 – Nature of Work 

Standard 2100 covers the way the internal audit activity evaluates and contributes 

to the improvement of the organisation’s risk management and governance 

framework and internal control processes, using a systematic, disciplined and risk-

based approach.   

The clear indication from this EQA is that Internal Audit generally conforms to 

performance standard 2100 and the LGAN. There are no observations for this 

standard.  

5.4 Performance Standard 2200 – Engagement Planning 

Performance standard 2200 requires internal auditors to develop and document a 

plan for each engagement, including the engagement’s objectives, scope, timing 

and resource allocations.  The plan must consider the organisation’s strategies, 

objectives, and risks relevant to the engagement. 

We reviewed the processes used by Internal Audit for planning audit engagements 

and found that they generally conformed to performance standard 2200, the LGAN, 

and Internal Audit’s own procedures. There is however one observation that should 

be addressed and this  relates to the number of days required to perform the 

various audits. For the majority of the engagements in the annual plan, the 

number of days allocated to each audit is set at a uniform 20 days whereas we 

would have expected to see some variation in the number of days if the plan had 

been based on an assessment of the actual work required to complete each review. 

We suggest that the Service undertakes an in-depth review of the number of days 

realistically required for each audit assignment. (Action 15).    

5.5 Performance Standard 2300 – Performing the Engagement 

Performance standard 2300 seeks to confirm that internal auditors analyse, 

evaluate and document sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful information to 

support the engagement results and conclusions, and that all engagements are 

properly supervised.   

We reviewed a sample of audits performed by the Internal Audit Service and found 

that they generally conformed to performance standard 2300 and the LGAN, 

however there are two observations that need to be addressed. 

The first observation relates to the materiality of the recommendations arising from 

the audit reviews. From the evidence that we have seen there does not appear to 

be any assessment of the materiality of the issues that have been identified i.e. the 

impact the issue has on the Council as a whole, or indeed the cost benefit of the 

suggest recommendation. It is suggested that materiality and the cost benefit of all 

recommendations are taken into consideration. (Action 13).  

The second observation relates to the supervision of the audit engagements. From 

the sample of audits examined during this EQA we found the recording of the 

supervision undertaken by management to be variable. When the Audit Manager 

was in post, we found the recording of the supervision of the engagements to be 

satisfactory, however since the post became vacant supervision of the 

engagements has fallen to the Director of Financial Resources and, coupled with 

the COVID-19 pandemic, we have found that the recording of the supervision 

Page 15



 

Page 7 of 24 Pages 

undertaken for audit engagements has been undertaken to be limited and needs to 

be strengthened. (Action 5). 

5.6 Performance Standard 2500 – Monitoring Progress 

There is a comprehensive follow-up process in place, the objective of which is to 

monitor management’s progress towards the implementation of agreed actions. 

The results of this process are reported to the Audit Committee and although 

management have been relatively slow to implement agreed actions in the past 

progress has improved in recent months. From this EQA, it is evident that the 

Internal Audit Service generally conforms to performance standard 2500 and the 

LGAN. 

5.7 Performance Standard 2600 – Communicating the Acceptance of Risk 

Standard 2600 considers the arrangements which should apply if the CAE has 

concluded that management has accepted a level of risk that may be unacceptable 

to the Council.  Situations of this kind are expected to be rare, consequently, we 

did not see any evidence of these during this EQA. From this EQA, it is evident that 

the Internal Audit Service generally conforms to performance standard 2600 and 

the LGAN. 

6. Areas of partial conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note 

6.1 Mission Statement and Definition of Internal Audit 

The definition of internal audit from the PSIAS is included in the audit charter but 

the mission statement from the PSIAS is not included. This needs to be added to 

the audit charter at the next revision. We therefore conclude that the Internal Audit 

Service partially conforms to this element of the standards. (Action 2). 

6.2 Core Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing 

The Core Principles, taken as a whole, articulate an internal audit function’s 

effectiveness, and provide a basis for considering the organisation’s level of 

conformance with the Attribute and Performance standards of the PSIAS.   

Given the number of observations and remedial actions we have identified and 

recorded under the attribute and performance standards, we are of the view that 

the Internal Audit Service partially conforms to the core principles.  

6.3 Code of Ethics 

The purpose of the Institute of Internal Auditors’ Code of Ethics is to promote an 

ethical culture in the profession of internal auditing, and is necessary and 

appropriate for the profession, founded as it is on the trust placed in its objective 

assurance about risk management, control, and governance.  The Code of Ethics 

provides guidance to internal auditors and in essence, it sets out the rules of 

conduct that describe behavioural norms expected of internal auditors and are 

intended to guide their ethical conduct. The Code of Ethics applies to both 

individuals and the entities that provide internal auditing services. 

Whilst the Internal Audit Service conforms to most of the elements of the Code of 

Ethics for Internal Auditors, the observations  relating to the development of the 

Senior Auditors that we have identified and recorded under the attribute and 

performance standards unfortunately means that the Internal Audit Service only 

partially conforms to the code of ethics.   

 6.4 Attribute Standard 1200 – Proficiency and Due Professional Care 

Attribute standard 1200 requires Internal Audit engagements are performed with 

proficiency and due professional care, having regard to the skills and qualifications 

of the staff, and how they apply their knowledge in practice.   

Page 16



 

Page 8 of 24 Pages 

From this EQA it is evident that Copeland Borough Council’s Internal Audit Service 

partially conforms with attribute standard 1200 and the LGAN. There are, however, 

a number of observations that need to be addressed.  

The first observation relates to the materiality of the recommendations arising from 

the audit reviews and this has been covered under performance standard 2300. 

(Action 12). 

The next group of observations all relate to having a skilled and competent internal 

audit service and the development of the Senior Auditors. Whilst it is appreciated 

that staff development has been difficult since the start of the pandemic, it is 

apparent that the Senior Auditors have had minimal internal audit related training 

and development for some time. 

The Chief Audit Executive should undertake an assessment of the skills of the two 

Senior Auditors and assess these with the needs of the Council.  As neither Senior 

Auditor holds a relevant professional qualification, the Council should also consider 

supporting them to obtain a suitable qualification. The results of the assessments 

should be discussed with the Senior Auditors at their annual appraisals which 

should be undertaken and documented on at least an annual basis and in 

accordance with CBC’s appraisal process. (Action 4). 

 The next observation relates to the recording of all learning and development 

undertaken by the Senior auditors. At the time of the EQA the only learning and 

development that they recorded on their development records related to a small 

number of general training courses, which, in our view did not demonstrate that 

they are maintaining their skills and knowledge. To overcome this shortfall, the 

Senior Auditors should consider recording all types of learning and development 

that they have undertaken, including reading technical publications and any 

research and knowledge up-dates undertaken prior to undertaking an audit. 

(Action 9). 

The last observation relates to the use of computer assisted audit techniques to 

audit processes that involve large volumes of data. These applications can provide 

the Council with an enhanced level of assurance as they can be used to test the 

whole population within the system rather than a sample of transactions. (Action 

16).  

6.5 Attribute Standard 1300 – Quality Assurance and Improvement 

Programmes 

This standard requires the Chief Audit Executive to develop and maintain a quality 

assurance and improvement programme that covers all aspects of the internal 

audit activity.   

We have examined the Internal Audit Services quality assurance and improvement 

programme (QAIP) and have identified three observations that need to be 

addressed. 

The first observation relates to the supervision of audit engagements and this has 

already been covered under performance standard 2300 above (Action 5). 

The second observation relates to the QAIP itself which needs to be strengthened 

and formally documented, taking into consideration a wide range of issues 

including the learning and development of the Senior Auditors, the performance of 

the service, any feedback received from stakeholders, learning points from audits, 

issues identified by external sources such as the CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

that may have an impact on the Council, and the outcomes from both the self-

assessments and this EQA. (Action 6). 

The third observation relates to the use of the statement ‘conforms to the public 

sector internal audit standards’ which is currently included in the annual report. 

Page 17



 

Page 9 of 24 Pages 

The standard states that this statement should only be used if it is supported by 

the outcomes of the QAIP. Unfortunately, this EQA has indicated that the Service is 

only partially conforming to the PSIAS and therefore  it is our opinion that the 

statement should not be used until the actions set out in the action plan relating to 

compliance with the PSIAS have been addressed and the Service generally 

conforms to the standards. (Action 3). 

6.6 Performance Standard 2000 – Managing the Internal Audit Activity 

The remit of this standard is wide and requires the Chief Audit Executive to 

manage the internal audit activity effectively to ensure it adds value to its clients.  

Value is added to a client and its stakeholders when internal audit considers their 

strategies, objectives, and risks; strives to offer ways to enhance their governance, 

risk management, and control processes; and objectively provides relevant 

assurance to them.  To achieve this, the Chief Audit Executive must produce an 

audit plan for each client, and communicate this and the Service’s resource 

requirements, including the impact of resource limitations, to senior management 

and the Audit Committee for their review and approval.  The Chief Audit Executive 

must ensure that Internal Audit’s resources are appropriate, sufficient, and 

effectively deployed to achieve the approved plan.   

The standard also requires the Chief Audit Executive to establish policies and 

procedures to guide the internal audit activity, and to share information, coordinate 

activities and consider relying upon the work of other internal and external 

assurance and consulting service providers to ensure proper coverage and 

minimise duplication of efforts.   

Last, but by no means least, the standard requires the Chief Audit Executive to 

report periodically to senior management and the Audit Committee on Internal 

Audit’s activities, purpose, authority, responsibility and performance relative to its 

plan, and on its conformance with the Code of Ethics and the Standards.  Reporting 

must also include significant risk and control issues, including fraud risks, 

governance issues and other matters that require the attention of senior 

management and/or the audit committee. 

The indication from this EQA is that Internal Audit partially conforms to standard 

2000 and the LGAN and there are a number of observations that should be 

addressed. 

The first of these relates to assessing the number of days required for each audit 

engagement and this issue has already been covered under performance standard 

2200 above. (Action 15). 

The next group of observations relate to the published audit plan. The published 

audit plan consists of a list of audits and the number of days allocated to each one, 

whereas the standards expect internal audit services to provide more detail to the 

audit committee, such as a brief outline of the scope of the proposed audit and a 

priority to be allocated to each audit linked to their importance to the Council as a 

whole. In addition, it is good practice to cross reference the published audit plan to 

the Council’s priorities and the strategic risk register as it demonstrates how the 

internal audit plan links to these other key documents. (Action 7). 

The last observation relates to providing a strategic or high-level statement to 

support the published audit plan. The strategic statement sets out how the Chief 

Audit Executive is going to deliver the audit plan. Whilst some information is 

provided in the covering report that accompanies the published audit plan, it is 

missing some key elements of a strategic statement and needs to be strengthened. 

(Action 10). 

   

 

Page 18



 

Page 10 of 24 Pages 

6.7 Performance Standard 2400 – Communicating Results 

This standard requires internal auditors to communicate the results of 

engagements to clients and sets out what should be included in each audit report, 

as well as the annual report and opinion.  When an overall opinion is issued, it 

must take into account the strategies, objectives and risks of the clients and the 

expectations of their senior management, the audit panels and other stakeholders. 

The overall opinion must be supported by sufficient, reliable, relevant, and useful 

information.  Where an internal audit function is deemed to conform to the PSIAS, 

reports should indicate this by including the phrase “conducted in conformance 

with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing”.   

It is our view that Internal Audit partially conforms to performance standard 2400 

and the LGAN. Again, there are a number of observations relating to this standard 

that should be addressed. 

The first three observations relate to enhancing the recording of audit supervision, 

the preparation of a formal QAIP and reporting this to the audit committee, and the 

use of ‘conforms to the PSIAS statement in audit reports. These have all been 

covered above under performance standard 2300 for audit supervision, and 

attribute standard 1300 for the other two observations (Actions 5, 6, and 3). 

The next observations relate to addressing matters set out in audit reports that 

come to light after the report has been published and which result in a revised 

report being issued. Our experience shows that this is not a common scenario, 

however in the sample of completed audits that we have examined there was one 

occasion where this scenario has arisen. Although the audit report in question had 

been revised to include an assurance opinion that was weaker than the one 

included in the original published report, a revised report does not appear to have 

been issued to the relevant service managers, even though it had been reported to 

the Audit Committee with the lower opinion.  A post-audit review of this audit by 

Senior Management in the Council felt that the original assurance opinion given by 

Internal Audit was too high given the number of priority one and two status 

recommendations that they had identified. We examined the issues identified 

during this audit and we concur with management’s decision to revise the 

assurance opinion down to a lower level. Whilst this scenario does not happen 

often, the Chief Audit Executive should consider whether to introduce a mechanism 

that links the number of high priority recommendations to the assurance opinions, 

for example if there are, say, three or more high priority recommendations, the 

audit opinion cannot be higher than ‘partial assurance’. (Action 11).   

The final observation relates to the description of the assurance opinions used by 

Internal Audit. The service uses four opinion levels; however, the weakest opinion 

level is confusing as it has a dual identity being entitled limited / none. Whilst both 

of these descriptors are in common use by internal audit services, they are usually 

used on their own and not linked.  It is suggested that greater clarity will be 

achieved if the title of the weakest category is changed to either limited or none, or 

if preferred a completely different word such as ‘minimal’ for example. (Action 17). 

7. Areas of non-conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and the CIPFA Local Government Application Note 

7.1 There are no areas of non-conformance with the standards. 

 

8. Survey results 

8.1 The results of the survey of Officers and Members of the Audit committee is shown 

in appendix A of the report. The number of returned questionnaires was quite low 

with only eight in total being returned (two from Officers and six from Members). 

With such a low response rate, particularly from Officers, it is difficult to draw 

Page 19



 

Page 11 of 24 Pages 

meaningful conclusions from the survey, however there are some responses to 

significant questions that management should note and investigate further to 

determine if there are any underlying issues that may need to be addressed 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

Page 12 of 24 Pages 

9. Action Plan  

1. Explore alternative arrangements for the Chief Audit Executive Role (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

There is a potential impairment to the objectivity and independence of the Chief Audit 

Executive who is also the Council’s Director of Financial Resources and Section 151 

Officer as the Council has been unable to fill the vacant Audit Manager post.  Whilst 

this arrangement is permitted, it is not ideal, although the Council has arrangements in 

place to mitigate any potential impairment and maintain the independence and 

objectivity of both roles. There are however alternative models that should be explored 

by the Council, for example a shared service arrangement with one of the other 

authorities that will join with Copeland to become the new West Cumbria Unitary 

Authority 

Currently working with Allerdale Borough Council on 

the recruitment of a shared Internal Audit Manager 

post.  

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 31/03/2022 

 

 

2.  Mission statement (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The mission statement from the PSIAS needs to be added to the audit charter at the 

next revision. The Standards define the Mission of Internal Audit as follows: “To 

enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 

assurance, advice and insight”. 

The mission statement has been included in a draft 

2022/23 Internal Audit Charter 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline Implemented with immediate effect 

 

 

P
age 21



 

Page 13 of 24 Pages 

 

 

 

3. Use of the ‘Conforms to the PSIAS’ statement (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The statement ‘conforms to the public sector internal audit standards’ is currently 

included in the annual report. The standard states that this statement should only be 

used if it is supported by the outcomes of the QAIP. Unfortunately, this EQA has 

indicated that the Service is only partially conforming to the PSIAS and therefore  it is 

our opinion that the statement should not be used until the actions set out in the 

action plan relating to compliance with the PSIAS have been addressed and the Service 

generally conforms to the standards. 

The inclusion of the statement will be revised during 

the drafting of the next annual report to ensure it is 

only included when full compliance with PSIAS has 

been achieved. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/06/22 

 

 

4. Staff development (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The Chief Audit Executive should undertake an assessment of the skills of the two 

Senior Auditors and assess these against the needs of the Council.  The results of this 

assessment can then form the basis of a learning and development programme for 

each of them, which should also include encouraging and supporting them to obtain a 

relevant qualification, such as completing their AAT qualifications or obtaining the IIA 

Certified Internal Auditor qualification. 

In addition, the annual appraisals for the Senior Auditors should be undertaken and 

recorded in accordance with the process in place at the Council. 

Initial appraisal meetings have been undertaken 

and staff training requirements are being assessed. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

P
age 22



 

Page 14 of 24 Pages 

Deadline 30/09/21 

 

 

5. Recording of supervisory evidence (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

Since the Audit Manager post became vacant in 2019, and, coupled with the COVID-19 

pandemic which has increased pressure on the Chief Audit Executive, the recording of 

evidence that supervision of Internal Audit engagements has taken place has been 

limited and needs to be strengthened. 

Current process will be revised and a suitable 

method to record the supervision of engagements 

will be put in place. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/09/21 

 

 

6. Enhance and document the quality assessment and improvement programme (QAIP) (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The QAIP needs to be a strengthened and formally documented It should include a 

wide range of issues including the learning and development of the Senior Auditors, the 

performance of the service, feedback from stakeholders, any learning points from 

audits relating to service delivery, issues identified from external sources such as 

networking events or the CIPFA Better Governance Forum, and the outcomes from the 

self-assessments and this EQA. 

The QAIP will be revised to include the issues 

raised. Guidance will be sought from other local 

authorities. Evidence will be held to support the 

QAIP summary included in the annual report. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/06/22 

 

 

 

P
age 23



 

Page 15 of 24 Pages 

 

7. Expand the information provided in the audit plan (High priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The published audit plan consists of a list of audits and the number of days allocated to 

each one, whereas the standards expect internal audit services to provide more detail 

than this to the audit committee, such as a brief outline of the scope of the proposed 

audit, and the priority of each audit, linked to their importance to the Council as a 

whole. In addition, it is good practice to cross reference the audit plan to the Council’s 

priorities and the strategic risk register to demonstrates how the internal audit plan 

links to these other key documents. 

The Audit Plan report will be revised for 2022/23 to 

include sufficient detail. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 31/03/22 

 

 

8.  Make reference to the dual roles of the CAE and S151 Officer in the annual report (Medium priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

Paragraph 2.1 of the 2020/21 annual report states that there have been no threats to 

the independence of Internal Audit and makes no mention of the dual role of the CAE 

and S151 Officer. In such circumstance it is good practice to make reference to the 

potential impairment in the annual report to remove any element of doubt for the 

reader as this document looks back at the year just ended, whereas the audit charter 

is designed to be forward looking. 

Annual report will be revised, dependent upon the 

recruitment of the shared Internal Audit Manager 

role. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/06/22 

 

 

 

P
age 24



 

Page 16 of 24 Pages 

9. Recording all relevant learning and development (Medium priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

All internal auditors are required by the standards to undertake continuous professional 

development and to maintain suitable records of the development undertaken. The 

Senior Auditors only tend to record training course and they have undertaken and 

there have been very few of these in the past few years. In reality any form of 

knowledge enhancement, including networking, reading technical manuals and 

journals, and carrying out research prior to undertaking an audit are all learning and 

development opportunities can be recorded on their training logs. 

Senior Auditors will now record the routine research 

which is undertaken during the development of 

audit scopes and risks. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline Implemented with immediate effect 

 

 

10. Provide a strategic statement on the delivery of the audit plan (Medium priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The Chief Audit Executive should provide a strategic or high-level statement to support 

the published audit plan, setting out how the audit plan is going to be delivered and 

where the Chief Audit Executive is going to get assurance from, whether the available 

resources are adequate and where they are coming from, the various types of audit to 

be carried out etc. Whilst some information is provided in the covering report that 

accompanies the published audit plan, it is missing some key elements of a strategic 

statement and needs to be strengthened. 

Advice will be sought as to which additional key 

elements are required and these will be included in 

the next audit plan. 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 31/03/22 

 

 

 

P
age 25



 

Page 17 of 24 Pages 

11. Re-issue of amended internal audit reports (Medium priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

Where an audit report is revised after it has been issued, to correct errors or because 

the assurance opinion has been changed, a revised version of the report should be 

issued to all of the recipients on the report distribution list. In addition, consideration 

should also be given to linking the number of high priority recommendations to the 

assurance opinion, for example if there are, say three or more high priority 

recommendations, the auditors cannot issue an audit opinion higher than ‘partial 

assurance’. 

Consideration with the Audit Committee will be 

given to revising the definitions and reasoning for 

the overall assurance opinions, with the possible 

inclusion of the number of high priority 

recommendations as a rationale 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/11/21 

 

 

12.  Define consultancy services in the audit charter and audit manual (Low priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The audit charter makes reference to consultancy services but does not define what 

consultancy services are, as required by the PSIAS. There is no section or definition for 

consultancy services in the audit manual. Definitions need to be added to both 

documents.  An example of a suitable definition is as follows:- “Internal audit also 

provides an independent and objective consultancy service which is advisory in nature, 

and generally performed at the specific request of management which evaluates 

policies, procedures, systems and operations put in place or being considered by 

management. Such consultancy work is separate from but contributes to the opinion 

which internal audit provides on risk management control and governance. When 

performing consulting services, the internal auditor will maintain objectivity and not 

take on management responsibility”.  

Audit charter and manual will be revised to clarify 

the provision of consultancy services 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/06/22 

 

P
age 26



 

Page 18 of 24 Pages 

 

13.  Consider the materiality and cost benefit of all recommendations (low priority) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

From the evidence that we have seen there does not appear to be any assessment of 

the materiality of the issues that have been identified i.e. the impact the issue has on 

the Council as a whole, or indeed the cost benefit of the suggested recommendation. It 

is suggested that materiality and the cost benefit of all recommendations are taken 

into consideration 

Advice will be sought to clarify the requirements so 

that the materiality of issues will be included in 

reports where applicable 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/09/21 

 

 

14.  Add a section to the audit manual on independence and objectivity (Advisory) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

A section relating to auditors maintaining independence and objectivity, and how to 

deal with any potential impairments should they arise, should be added to the audit 

manual.  

Audit manual will be revised to include the 

maintenance of independence and objectivity, and 

the process of how to deal with any potential 

impairments should they arise 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/09/21 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



 

Page 19 of 24 Pages 

 

15.  Review the number of days required for each audit assignment (Advisory) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

We suggest that the Service undertakes an in-depth review of the number of days 

actually required for each audit assignment, based on the various elements of the 

engagement. 

A review of the individual audit budgets will be 

assessed and consideration given to the drafting of 

the 2022/23 audit plan 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 31/03/22 

 

 

16. Expand the use of data analytics (Advisory) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

Internal Audit has used specialist data analytics software applications in the past as 

they are an efficient way of auditing systems with large volumes of data , but they are 

no longer doing so. It is suggested that consideration is given to obtaining an 

application and training the Senior Auditors on its use. There are a number of 

applications on the market that can be considered, although an application that is 

commonly found being used in the local government sector is IDEA, which is often 

coupled with the SmartAnalyser add-on tool to provide an effective and efficient way of 

auditing the core financial and HR systems. IDEA was used by CBC in the past but is no 

longer in use. 

Consideration will be given to assess the cost 

benefits of implementation of data analytic software  

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 31/03/22 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



 

Page 20 of 24 Pages 

 

17. Description of audit opinions (Advisory) 

Rationale Agreed Action 

The Service states that it uses four opinion levels for the audits however, the weakest 

opinion level is confusing as it has a dual identity being entitled limited / none. Whilst 

both of these descriptors are in common use by internal audit services, they are 

usually used on their own and not linked.  It is suggested that greater clarity will be 

achieved if the title of the weakest category is changed to either limited or none, or if 

preferred, a completely different word such as ‘minimal’ for example. 

Description of audit opinions will be revised to 

provide clarity 

Action Responsibility Director of Financial Resources 

Deadline 30/09/21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 29



 

Page 21 of 24 Pages 

9. Definitions  
 

Generally 

Conforms 

The internal audit service complies with the standards with only minor 

deviations.  The relevant structures, policies, and procedures of the internal 

audit service, as well as the processes by which they are applied, at least 

comply with the requirements of the section in all material respects. 

Partially 

Conforms 

The internal audit service falls short of achieving some elements of good 

practice but is aware of the areas for development.  These will usually 

represent significant opportunities for improvement in delivering effective 

internal audit and conformance to the standards. 

Does Not 

Conform 

The internal audit service is not aware of, is not making efforts to comply 

with, or is failing to achieve many/all of the elements of the standards.  These 

deficiencies will usually have a significant adverse impact on the internal 

audit service’s effectiveness and its potential to add value to the 

organisation.  These will represent significant opportunities for improvement, 

potentially including actions by senior management or the board. 

 
 

Action 

Priorities 

 

Criteria 

High priority  

The internal audit service needs to rectify a significant issue of non-

conformance with the standards.  Remedial action to resolve the issue 

should be taken urgently. 

Medium 

priority  

The internal audit service needs to rectify a moderate issue of conformance 

with the standards.  Remedial action to resolve the issue should be taken, 

ideally within six months. 

Low priority  

The internal audit service should consider rectifying a minor issue of 

conformance with the standards.  Remedial action to resolve the issue 

should be considered but the issue is not urgent. 

Advisory 

These are issues identified during the course of the EQA that do not 

adversely impact the service’s conformance with the standards.  Typically, 

they include areas of enhancement to existing operations and the adoption 

of best practice. 

 

The co-operation of the Director of Financial Resources and the two Senior Auditors in 

providing the information requested for this EQA, is greatly appreciated.  Our thanks also 

go to the chair of the Audit Committee and the other key stakeholders that made 

themselves available for interview during the EQA process and/or completed questionnaires.  

 

Ray Gard, CPFA, FCCA, FCIIA, DMS 
 
27th August 2021 

Page 30



 

Page 22 of 24 Pages 

This report has been prepared by CIPFA at the request of the Copeland Borough Council, 

the terms for the preparation and scope of the report have been agreed with the Council’s 

Director of Financial Resources.  The matters raised are only those that came to our 

attention during our work.  Whilst every care has been taken to ensure that the information 

provided in this report is as accurate as possible, we have only been able to base findings 

on the information and documentation provided.  Consequently, no complete guarantee can 

be given that this report is necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the issues that 

exist with their conformance to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards that exist, or of 

all the improvements that may be required.   

The report was prepared solely for the use and benefit of Copeland Borough Council, and to 

the fullest extent permitted by law, CIPFA accepts no responsibility and disclaims all liability 

to any other third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever on the 

report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, and/or reinterpretation of its contents.  

Accordingly, any reliance placed on the report, its contents, conclusions, any extract, 

reinterpretation, amendment and/or modification by any third party is entirely at their own 

risk. 

 

Page 31



 

Page 23 of 24 Pages 

Appendix A 

Summary of Survey Results 

As part of the EQA process, CIPFA used a questionnaire to obtain the views of the Officers 

and Members of the Audit Committee.  The number of questionnaires returned was quite 

low with only two from Officers and six from Members being returned. 

 

  Percentage (%) 

No. Question  

Agree 

Partially 

Agree 

Not 

Agree 

 

N/A 

1 The internal audit service is seen as a key 

strategic partner throughout the 

organisation.  

75.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 

2 Senior managers understand and fully 

support the work of internal audit.  
62.5 37.5 0.0 0.0 

3 Internal audit is valued throughout the 

organisation.  
50.0 37.5 0.0 12.5 

4 The internal audit service is delivered with 

professionalism at all times.  
75.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 

5 The internal audit service responds quickly 

to changes within the organisation.  
25.0 62.5 0.0 12.5 

6 The internal audit service has the necessary 

resources and access to information to 

enable it to fulfil its mandate. 

37.5 50.0 0.0 12.5 

7 The internal audit service is adept at 

communicating the results of its findings, 

building support and securing agreed 

outcomes  

50.0 37.5 0.0 12.5 

8 The internal audit service’s 

recommendations consider the wider impact 

on the organisation  

100.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

9 The internal audit service ensures that 

recommendations made are proportionate, 

commercial and practicable in relation to the 

risks identified.  

62.5 37.5 0.0 0.0 

10 There have not been any significant control 

breakdowns or surprises in areas that have 

been positively assured by the internal audit 

service 

75.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 

11 The internal audit service includes 

consideration of all risk areas in its work 

programme.  

87.5 12.5 0.0 0.0 

Page 32



 

Page 24 of 24 Pages 

  Percentage (%) 

No. Question  

Agree 

Partially 

Agree 

Not 

Agree 

 

N/A 

12 Internal audit advice has a positive impact 

on the governance, risk management, and 

the system of control of the organisation.  

75.0 25.0 0.0 0.0 

13 Internal audit activity has enhanced 

organisation-wide understanding of 

governance, risk management, and internal 

control.  

75.0 12.5 0.0 12.5 

14 The internal audit service asks challenging 

and incisive questions that stimulate debate 

and improvements in key risk areas.  

62.5 25.0 0.0 12.5 

15 The internal audit service raises significant 

control issues at an appropriate level and 

time in the organisation.  

62.5 25.0 0.0 12.5 

16 The organisation accepts and uses the 

business knowledge of internal auditors to 

help improve business processes and meet 

strategic objectives.  

87.5 12.5 0.0 0.0 

17 Internal audit activity influences positive 

change and continuous improvement to 

business processes, bottom line results and 

accountability within the organisation  

75.0 12.5 0.0 12.5 

18 Internal audit activity promotes appropriate 

ethics and values within the organisation 
87.5 0.0 0.0 12.5 

Below are some comments extracted from completed surveys that management may wish 

to consider: 

 I think more resources should be added to internal audit but appreciate there are 

financial implications for this. Also, I think not all actions are significant and should 

be classed as opportunities for improvement rather than actions. 

 Copeland’s reliance on their external auditor has been extensive and has benefited 

significantly in recommending additional qualified staff to be employed to mitigate 

this burden on the internal audit dept. There are good indications now that these 

voids will be addressed. 

 The access internal audit has to the necessary information required to fulfil the 

function of the service has been slightly hindered due to the pandemic and remote 

working. 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



  
Audit Committee 16th September 2021 

Internal Audit Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
LEAD OFFICER: 

Mike Starkie 
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 
 
WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS? 
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs to 
enable the continued delivery of services to Copeland residents.  
 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO AUDIT COMMITTEE? 
This report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the audit work undertaken 
during 2021/22. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Audit Committee is recommended to:  

1. Note the progress against the 2021/22 audit plan as set out in paragraph 2. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. Internal audit activity evaluates the exposures to risks relating to the 
organisation’s governance, operations and information systems, in compliance 
with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and to assist 
Members and Officers in their assessment of the overall level of control and the 
potential impact of any identified system weaknesses. 

1.2. This report summarises the progress against the audit plan since the Audit 
Committee on 29 July 2021.  

2. INTERNAL AUDIT FINAL REPORTS 

2.1. Internal audit have issued one final and one draft report since the previous Audit 
Committee and the findings of the final report are summarised at Appendix A.  

2.2. The reports are: 

 ISO27001 Information Security Management System audit has been issued 
as a draft report with a provisional assurance level of Limited for the ICT 
elements and Reasonable for the HR elements of the audit. Comments and 
additional evidence have been received from the Head of ICT and are being 
reviewed by Internal Audit; 

Page 35

Agenda Item 5



  

 Performance Management and Improvement Framework has been issued as 
a final report with a Reasonable assurance opinion. 

2.3. Full copies of the final reports are available to Members of the Committee upon 
request. 

3. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

3.1. Internal audit are currently completing work on the following audits: 

 NNDR/Business Rates; 

 Property. 

3.2. Work on the main financial system reviews have been put on hold whilst work 
continues on implementing the new finance system. Work on the Data Protection 
Act/GDPR and the Corporate Governance audits have been scheduled for later in 
the year to allow newly appointed officers to become acquainted with their roles. 

3.3. Internal audit has carried out work for the National Fraud Initiative 2020 Data 
Matching exercise. The exercise has currently identified savings totalling 
£23,534.39 (includes recovery), with recovery actions being taken relating to 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Creditor overpayments totalling £18,186.80. 

3.4. Internal audit has also assisted with the external quality assessment of Internal 
Audit’s conformance to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, carried out by 
CIPFA. 

4. INTERNAL AUDIT COVERAGE AND OUTCOMES 

4.1. Audit Committee approved the 2021/22 audit plan at its meeting in July 2021.   

4.2. An overview of the 2021/22 plan and progress is set out below: 

Audit Review 
Assurance 

Opinion 
%age of 

Completion 
Status 

Carry Forward 2020/21 Main Financial System Audits 

Cash Receipting   
Awaiting roll out of new 
finance system 

Sundry Debtors   As above 
Risk-based audit reviews:  

Data Protection Act / 
GDPR 

  

Allowing time for new 
Information Governance and 
Data Compliance Officer to 
become accustomed to their 
role 

Page 36



  

Assurance review of new 
main financial system 

  
Awaiting roll out of new 
finance system 

Property  50% 
Scope agreed and testing 
being undertaken 

Main Financial Systems 

Creditors   
Awaiting roll out of new 
finance system 

Main Accounting System   As above 

NNDR/Business Rates  50% 
Scope agreed and testing 
being undertaken 

Corporate Governance – 
information governance, 
data & regulatory 
compliance 

  
Awaiting start of new Head of 
Corporate Governance and 
Legal (October 21) 

 

5. CONCLUSIONS 

5.1. The Committee is asked to note the progress against the plan. 

6. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  

6.1. Legal comments are: contained in the report 

6.2. The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: contained in the report 

6.3. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report. 

6.4. EIA Comments: N/A 

6.5. Policy Framework: N/A 

6.6. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A 

List of Appendices  

Appendix A – Summary of outcomes of final audit reports issued 

 

Page 37



  
Appendix A  Summary of outcomes of final audit reports issued since the last Audit Committee in July 2021 

Audit Review 
Assurance 

Opinion 
Priority of Recommendations 

High Medium Advisory 

Performance Management and Improvement Framework Reasonable  1 1 

Summary of key outcomes and recommendations 

The Client Sponsor for this review was Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy), and the agreed 
scope of the audit was to provide assurance over management’s arrangements for governance, risk management and internal 
control in the following areas: 

 Governance arrangements over performance management – framework compliance; communication/training;  

 Data quality/reliability of information used in monitoring performance management, including the use of the Performance 
Management System.  

There were no instances whereby the audit work undertaken was impaired by the availability of information. 

Strengths: The following areas of good practice were identified during the course of the audit: 

 Performance Management roles and responsibilities are clearly defined within the current version of the Performance 
Management and Improvement Framework (PMIF); 

 An annual performance and risk reporting timetable is followed to ensure the service planning cycle is completed for 
monitoring; 

 Approved Service Plans were provided to the Performance and Risk Management Officer (PRMO) by each service expected; 

 Data relating to the agreed Key Performance Indicators is updated on the performance management system, Pentana,  by 
designated Managers/Officers, with recurring email triggers set as a reminder of this requirement; 

 Corporate Performance Update reports are populated with data from Pentana and presented to Executive and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, via Corporate Leadership Team for each quarter, in line with the PMIF; 

 Information relating to areas of concern or nil returns of data are included within the Committee reports which are presented 
by a member of CLT; 

 Appropriate training and guidance, including the use of Pentana and requirements of the PMIF, have been provided to 
Managers/Officers with performance management responsibilities, with additional support continually available;  

P
age 38



  

 Arrangements have been established for the PRMO to be notified when employees are new to or exiting the Council with 
performance management responsibilities, to enable Pentana system access and provision of training to be planned. 

Areas for development: Improvements in the following areas are necessary in order to strengthen existing control arrangements: 

High priority issues: 

 No issues identified. 

Medium priority issues: 

 Not all performance indicators (PIs) were provided to the PRMO for upload to Pentana for monitoring in accordance with the 
PMIF. 

Advisory issues: 

 The PMIF has not been reviewed and updated since 2018. 

Comment from the Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy: 

As already highlighted within the report, our officer responsible for the governance of this role was reallocated to assisting in the 
response of CV19 partially throughout 2020. Although some timelines in process may have elongated or shifted, which was 
cognisant that our service Heads and managers were incredibly busy and fully absorbed elsewhere, the robustness, rigour and 
importance of corporate performance review did not diminish, and CLT were kept informed and briefed throughout this time. The 
opportunity was also taken to reflect on areas of potential reporting and relevance of existing PIs and introduction of new PIs 
which have emerged out of response situations and which have subsequently become embedded as ‘normal’ activity for a service.  
All of this nuance will be incorporated into any necessary amendments and update to the PMIF currently under review. 
 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 41

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 43

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 47

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/industries/public-sector/local-government/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

.

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

More 
meaningful 
and timely 
reporting

Maximising 
the value 

from 
auditor’s 

work

More 
freedom to 
reflect local 

context

VFM arrangements commentary and recommendations

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/lessons-from-recent-public-interest-reports/


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 53

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2020.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 54

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


Commercial in confidence

P
age 55

https://www.psaa.co.uk/2020/12/news-release-2019-20-audited-accounts/


P
age 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2021
	4 External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit's Conformance to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards
	Appendix A  PSIAS EQA - Revised 27-08-21

	5 Internal Audit Update
	7 Grant Thornton update

